VENN BROTHERS

SAPPER GEORGE JAMES VENN
3203 – 2nd Pioneer Battalion
George James Venn was born on 16 August, 1894 at Parattah, Oatlands, Tasmania the son of Matthew Silas and Matilda (nee Harding) Venn.
At the recruiting depot at Ross (6th Military District) on 1 November, 1915 the twenty-year-old labourer applied to enlist for active service abroad and passed the medical examination.  He said he had no military service residing in an exempt area.  Being under 21 years of age both his parents gave their permission to the enrolling officer on 4 November, 1915 that their son had full consent to enlist in the A.I.F.  Forms of Attestation were completed and describe him as 172cms (5ft 7½ins) tall with a 88-95cms (34½-37½ins) chest expansion and of the Church of England faith.  Next-of-kin nominated was his father Matthew Silas Venn of Mount Direction, Tas.  The Oath of Enlistment was signed and taken on 8 November, 1915.
Acknowledgment to the new recruits was published in the:
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The recruits were transferred to Claremont camp on 15 November, 1915 and allotted to the Field Artillery where he absconded about November 19 and a warrant was issued for his arrest in the:

[image: image3.jpg]


He appeared in the Police Court and convicted then remanded to Claremont camp and handed over to the military police.  News of this was reported in the:

At the A.I.F. Training camp Private 12214 George James Venn was discharged on 30 December, 1915 as worthless, not likely to become an efficient soldier.
Almost a year later at the recruiting depot in Launceston on 25 July, 1916 the single twenty-one-year-old miner re-applied to enlist for service abroad and passed the medical examination.   He said he evaded previous military service and described in Attestation papers as 173cms (5ft 7¾ins) tall with a chest expansion of 93-96cms (35½-38½ins) and a fair complexion with grey eyes and fair hair.  Religion was Church of England.  Next-of-kin nominated was his father Mr Matthew Silas Venn of Lower Piper, Tas.  The Oath of Allegiance was signed and taken at Claremont camp on 2 August, 1916.

Basic training commenced with the Machine Gun Depot from August 2 until allotted to the Miners Reinforcements on August 29, 1916 being transferred to their training camp at Seymour, Victoria (3rd M.D.) the next day.

Went sick with a social disease to Langwarrin on 24 October and returned to Seymour camp on 11 November, 1916 being assigned to the 7th Reinforcements to the 2nd Pioneer Battalion.  His rank was Private with the regimental number 3203.
The Reinforcements to the Pioneer Battalion embarked from Melbourne on 23 November, 1916 on board HMAT A20 Hororata under Master of the Ship Captain A.H. Riley and Officer Commanding Troops Lieut.-Colonel H. Pope, C.B.  The vessel arrived and departed Albany, W.A. on November 28 and reached Durban, South Africa on December 14.  Left there on 22 December coming into port at Cape Town on December 26 for an overnight stay.  Another refuelling took place at St Helena on 3 January and sailed a day later for Freetown on January 10 and after four days in port departed on 14 January.  
After a voyage of 68 days docked at Plymouth, England on 29 January, 1917 where they disembarked and marched into the Pioneers Training Battalion at Fovant the next day for further training for the front.
The Reinforcements proceeded to France from Folkstone on 19 April, 1917 arriving at the 2nd Aust Divisional Base Depot at Etaples the following day and marched out to his unit on 7 May, 1917 being taken on strength with the 2nd Pioneer Battalion.

Went sick on 4 July, 1917 to the 7th Aust Field Ambulance with P.U.O. (pyrexia (fever) uncertain origin) and discharged to duty five days later.  Entered the 5th Aust Field Ambulance with abdominal pain on 13 July diagnosed with appendicitis progressing to the 3rd Casualty Clearing Station then conveyed on Ambulance Train no.30 on July 25 and admitted to the 6th General Hospital in Rouen the next day.  
He was invalided to England on 29 July on the hospital ship Kaylan entering the Alexandra Hospital in Cosham with severe appendicitis on July 30.
Base Records advised his father on 14 August, 1917 that it was reported his son had been admitted to hospital and again on 28 August he was now convalescing.

Was transferred to the 3rd Aust Auxiliary Hospital in Harefield on 15 August, 1917 then granted furlough on 28 August and report to the Training Depot at Codford on 12 September.
His name was among those listed in the Casualty list published in the:
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On 26 November, 1917 was admitted to the 1st Dermatological Hospital at Bulford for six days and returned to Parkhouse camp on December 1 then to convalesce at the No. 1 Command Depot at Sutton Veny on 17 January, 1918.  While there was classed with B1A4 debility.
Disciplinary action was taken for the following:



Offence:
Parkhouse 14/1/18 neglecting to obey an order



Award:

Forfeits 4 day’s pay by Major E. Lewis 16/1/18



Offence:
Sutton Veny AWL midnight 26/2/18 to 12.30 p.m. 27/2/18



Award:

Dismissed by Lt-Col. R.H. Beardmore 11/3/18 as AWL in error



Offence:
Sutton Veny 12/6/18 AWL from midnight 11/6/18 until 6.45 a.m. 13/6/18



Award:

admonished by Lt-Col R.H. Beardmore



Forfeiture:
2 day’s pay R.W.

Was admitted to the military hospital, Sutton Veny on 18 June with tonsillitis until discharged on 2 July, 1918.


Offence:
Sutton Veny 6/7/18 making a false statement in applying for leave stating





“crimes” nil when he well knew that he was charged with AWL from 





11/6/18 to 13/6/18



Finding:
Guilty



Award:

punishment 3 days C.C. [confined to camp] by Captain Gunn 7/7/18



Offence:
Sutton Veny 5/8/18 Absent from parade



Award:

2 days C.C. by Major Scott 6/8/18

Marched out on 7 August, 1918 to the Overseas Training Brigade at Longbridge, Deverill.


Offence:
Sandhill 28/8/18 AWL from 8.30 a.m. parade


Award:

4 days Field Punishment No. 2 by Lt-Col John Halstab 31/8/18



Offence:
conduct prejudice to good order and military discipline in that he left





a parade without permission



Award:

2 days F.P. No. 2 by Lt-Col J. Halstab

Proceeded overseas to France on 6 September, 1918 from Folkstone arriving at the Aust Infantry Base Depot at Havre and marched out to his unit five days later re-joining on September 12.

He was with his unit when Peace was declared.

On 2 February, 1919 was appointed Driver in A.I.F. Orders 785 & 920 until 22 April when remustered to Escort Duty until April 25 then released on 1 May, 1919.

Orders were received to return to the Aust Infantry Base Depot in Havre on May 26 and crossing to England arriving at the No. 2 Group camp at Sutton Veny a day later.

After demobilisation Driver Venn embarked for Australia on 13 July, 1919 on board H.T. Persic.  Base Records advised his father on 1 August that he was returning home. 
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Military Discharge was issued in Hobart, Tas (6th M.D.) on 18 October, 1919 on termination of his period of enlistment.

For serving his country Driver 3203 George James Venn, 2nd Pioneer Battalion was issued with the British War Medal (6637) and the Victory Medal (6486).

He married at Piper’s Point on 27 December, 1920 to Frances Johansen and they lived in 1922 at Lower Piper, Piper’s River with his occupation as a farmer.  Later that year had moved to St Patrick’s River with the same occupation.

His medals were not collected from the designated barracks and returned to Base Records on 29 March, 1924 and a letter sent to him care of the last known address of his next-of-kin on 5 May, 1924.  He applied for his medals from Bridge North, Tas and these were forwarded by registered post on 19 June, 1924.
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He appeared before the Police Court and proceedings were reported in the:   
The Hobart branch of the Repatriation Commission requested from Base Records for a copy of his service records which were forwarded on 24 July, 1933.

By 1928 the couple were at 98 High Street, Launceston East with his occupation as a labourer and in 1936 had moved to 17 Bedford Street, Launceston North where they remained.

At the Man Power Board, Launceston on 13 April, 1942 he re-applied to enlist with the Australian Army giving next-of-kin as Frances Venn of 17 Bedford Street, Launceston.  Previous service with the A.I.F. was 4½ years and wounds received were on his neck and right hand in 1917.  He was classified with a IIB physique and was sworn in the same day.  His service number issued was T22050.  His documents are stamped with no record of service.
The couple appeared before the Police Court in 1945 convicted with the following:
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Mrs Frances Venn died in 1964 and interred in Carr Villa Cemetery, Launceston.
George James Venn passed away on 15 August, 1965 aged 70 years.  
Burial took place with his wife in the monumental section C11 of Carr Villa Memorial Park in grave no. 332B.
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His service is commemorated on the George Town Municipality Roll of Honour.
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His name also appears on the Yolla Memorial Hall Honour Roll.
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His brothers also served.
PRIVATE JOHN HENRY VENN
3204 – 2nd Pioneer Battalion
John Henry (Jack) Venn was born at Rhyndaston, Tasmania on 1 November, 1894 the son of Matthew Silas and Matilda (nee Harding) Venn.  His education was received at Linda Valley State School.
[image: image11.jpg]


He was awarded the Royal Humane Society’s Bronze Medal for heroism as reported in the:


Presentation of the award was reported in the:

He married on 3 November, 1913 at Mt Direction to Hilda May Williams.
Acknowledgment to the new volunteers was published in the:

At the recruiting depot at Longford, Tas (6th Military District) on 11 January, 1916 the married twenty-two-year-old gardener applied to enlist for active service abroad and passed the preliminary medical examination.  Personal particulars taken show he was 175cms (5ft 8¾ins) tall with a chest measurement of 95cms (37¼ins.)  Declared fit his application was accepted by the recruiting officer.  


Reported to Claremont camp on 27 January, 1916 and described in Attestation forms as a slaughterman, weighing 72.7kgs (160lbs) with a medium complexion with good vision in his hazel eyes and dark brown hair. Distinctive marks were three moles on his back.   Church of England was his religious faith.  Next-of-kin nominated was his wife Mrs Hilda Venn of Lower Piper, Tas and allotted three-fifths of his pay in support of her and their child.  The Oath of Allegiance was signed and taken the same day.Was allotted to the No. 5 Tunnelling Company but due to being in hospital when the company was transferred to Melbourne (3rd M.D.) missed sailing on the troopship HMAT A69 Warilda on May 22, 1916.   He returned to the lines on 5 June, 1916 and sent to the Miners training camp at Seymour, Victoria.  On 22 July was promoted to Lance Corporal and due to depart with the Reinforcements to the Tunnelling Companies on HMAT A23 Suffolk on 30 September but the day before departure was admitted to the military hospital with scabies (a skin irritation caused by Itch Mite whose eggs are laid under the skin’s outer layer).  Further treatment was administered at the No. 5 General Hospital until discharged to duty on October 12.
Returned to the Miners Reinforcements at Seymour on 13 October, 1916 and on October 27 was transferred to the 7th Reinforcements to the 2nd Pioneer Battalion.  
His rank was Private with the regimental number 3404 but for the voyage only was to be Acting Corporal.  His brother George Venn joined the same unit on 11 November, 1916.
The Reinforcements to the Pioneer Battalion embarked from Melbourne on 23 November, 1916 on board HMAT A20 Hororata under Master of the Ship Captain A.H. Riley and Officer Commanding Troops Lieut.-Colonel H. Pope, C.B.  The vessel arrived and departed Albany, W.A. on November 28 and reached Durban, South Africa on December 14.  Left there on 22 December coming into port at Cape Town on December 26 for an overnight stay.  Another refuelling took place at St Helena on 3 January and sailed a day later for Freetown on January 10 and after four days in port departed on 14 January.  After a voyage of 68 days docked at Plymouth, England on 29 January, 1917 where they disembarked and marched into the Pioneers Training Battalion at Fovant the next day for further training for the front.

He reverted to the rank of Acting Lance Corporal on 30 January, 1917 on marching in to the Pioneer Training Battalion at Larkhill.

During July, 1917 H.J. Johansen wrote from 21st Battalion A.I.F., Langwarrin Military Hospital to Base Records asking for any information as to the whereabouts of Corporal J. Venn of 7th Reinforcements, 2nd Pioneer Battalion and were at Seymour together and required his number also.  A reply was issued on 2 August stating that this soldier embarked on 23/11/16 with the 7th Reinforcements and no report has since been received concerning him and assumed he was with his unit.  His postal address was included and a note that no advice had been received of his promotion to corporal.
Was admitted to the 1st Aust Dermatological Hospital at Bulford with a social disease on 19 October, 1917 and after 123 days curative care was discharged on 18 February, 1918 to convalesce at Sutton Veny camp.
On 6 March, 1918 proceeded overseas to France from Southampton arriving at the Aust Infantry Base Depot at Havre a day later.  Left to join his unit on March 11 and taken on strength on 13 March, 1918 in the rank of Private.

Mr H.J. Johansen, care of Fenton & Co. Hamilton wrote again on 11 May, 1918 to Base Records asking for any information of J.H. Venn of the 2nd Pioneer Battalion.  A reply dated 17 May, 1918 stated that the latest report came to hand by mail that he was admitted sick to hospital on 17/10/17.  His postal address was included for correspondence.
Private Venn was killed in action on 13 June, 1918 at 25 years of age.  Burial took place in High British Cemetery, three-quarters of a mile North East of Sailly-le-Sec, four miles East North East of Corbie.
The Red Cross Society searched for information on deceased or missing soldiers and their card records from informants taken after the war give details on his demise.
Havre








14 February, 1919

Aust Pioneers 2







Venn J.H. 3204

K. 13 June, 1918 Det D/B

I was only 10 yards behind him at the time.  We were at Morlancourt Ridge.  We were making communication trenches, and Venn was just going up to do the work when a shell landed killing 4 and wounding two.  I saw the shell land.  He died instantly.






Info: Pte L.G. Jenkins No. 2107, Aust Pioneers 2, B., Aust. Demob. Camp.

A.I.F. 2nd Btn Pioneers






VENN, J.H. 3204

K. June 13/18

I saw Venn killed instantly by shell near Sailly-le-See at night about 9.30 p.m. near me (about 3 men off) near a sunken road.  We were going out to connect a trench captured from Fritz with our own front line.  We were with Lieut. Robertson (returned Australia wounded) who has written to Venn’s wife.  Ven was hit through head and leg & killed instantly, eight were killed & six wounded by the same shell.  
The killed included Stanton, Livings, Robinson, Hinch, Colvin & Venn.  Venn’s brother was with the Coy, till three days ago * has not gone to the transport.  He knows full particulars.  Venn was buried about 200 yds from where he fell.

Description: fresh complexion, medium height, thickset, about 32 years – had Humane Society’s ribbon.






Inf: Pte. P.M. Conroy 1678, 2nd Pion. Btn B. Coy, 

London, 28/2/19

2nd Pnrs Btn 







VENN, J.H.










Pte. 3204

K. in act. 13/6/18

I knew casualty.  He was a medium built man, about 5ft 8ins, dark complexion, about 25 years of age.  Casualty was going up to the line near Villers Brettoneux with a party of pioneers to dig a trench, when the enemy opened heavy gun fire and he jumped into a trench for shelter.  An H.E. shell landed in the trench killing casualty instantly.  I was about 12 yards away at the time and went to his assistance but he was quite dead.  I lifted his body out of the trench and put it on the parapet and he would be buried near there.






Inf: Pte F.N. Wise, No. 2470, 2nd Pnrs., 16/5/19

Buried High British Cemetery ¾ of a mile N.E. of Sailly-le-Sec, 4 miles E.N.E. of Corbie.








Cert by A.I.F. Hqrs 16/1/19

The 6th Military District was notified on 26 June, 1918 of the young soldier’s death and next-of-kin were notified.  News was shared in the:

A copy of his service was made for the Pension Department on 4 July, 1918.
The A.I.F. Kit Store, Hammersmith, London received his personal effects from the field on 17/7/18 and packaged them in one parcel containing 1 Diary, Testament, 2 Fountain Pens, 1 Wrist Watch and strap, 1 Glove, Photos, 2 YMCA Wallets, Cards, 2 Letters, 3 Religious Books, Various papers & 2 Wallets.
This was dispatched to Base Records on the transport Australcraig for distribution to his widow.

A memorial service was held for him which was reported in the:


Base Records received a letter from Mrs Venn from Richmond dated 6 February, 1919 asking if they could tell her anything concerning the personal effects of her late husband killed in action on 13/6/1918.  Could they let her know when she would receive them or where must she write to find out about them.

Base Records received his personal effects parcel and had forwarded it to Mrs H. Venn, Richmond, Tas on 4 February, 1919 and she receipted delivery on February 20.

Mrs Violet Johansen wrote to Base Records on 31 March, 1919 from Stephen Street, Hamilton and so did Mr H.J. Johansen of Thomson Street, asking if could they please give any information they could on Corp. J.H. Venn.  Mrs Johansen had heard he had returned to Australia and if this was true and his address, if possible, at their earliest.

Replies dated 4 April, 1919 to both inquirers regretted to inform that it was officially reported the soldier having been killed in action on 13/6/18 in France.  It was hoped through the efforts of the Graves Registration and Enquiries Committee, a burial report will come to hand later, which will be available to you should you again inquire at a later date.  

Base Records wrote to Mrs H. Venn at Richmond, Tas on 5 June, 1919 in reference to the regrettable loss of her husband and were now in receipt of advice which shows that he was killed in action in France on 13/6/18 and was buried in High British Cemetery, three-quarters of a mile North East of Sailly-le-Sec, four
miles East North East of Corbie.  
The utmost care and attention was being devoted, where possible, to graves of soldiers.  It was understood that photographs were being taken as soon as practicable for transmission to next-of-kin.  These additional details were furnished by direction, it being the policy of the Department to forward all information received in connection with deaths of members of the Australian Imperial Force.
On the first anniversary of his death his family placed the following notice in the:


Following the inquiry from Mrs Venn, Base Records replied on 20 August, 1919 advising that no further personal effects belonging to her husband had been received at their office other than the package forwarded to her on 5/2/19.  The kit bag, being part of the military equipment and the property of the Government, would not be returned, but any articles of sentimental value would be extracted and forwarded.  In the event of any other articles coming to hand in connection with the late soldier they would be promptly forwarded.  Her present address of 95 Melville Street, Hobart had been noted.
On 23 April, 1920 Base Records wrote to Mrs H. Venn with reference to their communication regarding the regrettable loss of her husband and were not in receipt of further advice which showed that his remains had been exhumed and re-interred in Villers Bretonneux Military Cemetery (Australian Memorial Cemetery.)  This work was carried out with every measure of care and reverence in the presence of a Chaplain.

A Circular and Booklet re Graves were issued on 12 December, 1919 and acknowledgment received by printed card dated 17 August, 1920.  Photographs of the grave were forwarded in triplicate to next-of-kin on 20 July, 1920.

For his supreme sacrifice Corporal 3204 John Henry Venn, 2nd Pioneer Battalion was issued for serving his country the British War Medal (53559) and the Victory Medal (52797).

The pamphlet Where the Australians Rest along with the Memorial Scroll (346838) went out to his widow on 14 December, 1922 who receipted delivery on 19 January, 1923.
The Memorial Plaque (346838) was also sent to Mrs H. Venn on 8 November, 1922 and she receipted delivery on December 12.

Both his War medals were sent by registered post on 3 May, 1923 to Mrs Venn and receipt returned dated as received on 19 May.

On 27 October, 1930 the Register Order Form was despatched with details as below.


His name is commemorated at the Australian War Memorial, Canberra, ACT on panel 173.

Location of his grave is in plot 8 of the Villers Bretonneux Military Cemetery within row A in grave no. 2


Mrs Hilda Venn died in 1963.

MATTHEW SYLIAS VENN

 607 – 15th Machine Gun Company

At the recruiting depot at Claremont camp (6th Military District) on 6 December, 1915 the single eighteen-year-old farmer applied to enlist for active service abroad and passed the medical examination having a good physique and never been vaccinated.  Attestation forms describe him as 170cms (5ft 7ins) tall, weighing 61.8kgs (136lbs) with a chest expansion of 87-94cms (34-37ins) and a medium complexion with good vision in his brown eyes and brown hair.  Distinctive mark was a burn on inner side of his left arm.  Religion was Church of England.  Next-of-kin nominated was his father Matthew S. Venn of Mount Direction, East Tamar, Tasmania.  The Oath of Enlistment was signed and taken the following day.
Basic training commenced at the A.I.F. Training Camp from 7 December but was discharged for a false attestation by the camp commandant on December 24.

At the Latrobe recruiting depot on 28 September, 1916 the nineteen-year-old labourer re-applied to enlist for active service abroad and passed the medical test.  Both his parents signed the consent form to enlist as he was under twenty-one-years of age. Forms of Attestation describe him as 171cms (5ft 7½ins) tall, weighing 72kgs (159lbs) with a chest measurement of 97cms (38ins) and had a medium complexion with good eyesight in his brown eyes and hair was brown.  Religion remained the same and distinctive mark was the burn scar on left inside arm.  Next-of-kin nominated was again his father Matthew Venn of Ringwood, Lower Piper River, Tas.
On 16 October, 1916 his mother wrote to the Camp Commandant to ask if he would be kind enough to arrange that her son should send her three shillings per day of his pay.  She had a large family and his father was not able to earn much to support the little ones and if it was all paid to him, he will only waste it.  He was willing to have it sent to her so if he would see about it for her, it would do her a great kindness.  Trusting you would oblige.  Mrs M.S. Venn, Ringwood, Lower Piper.
Acknowledgment to the new recruits was published in the:

After basic training at Claremont camp was transferred on 8 December, 1916 to Seymour camp, Victoria and allotted to the Machine Gun Depot.  Eight days later was admitted hospital having been in contact with measles and sent to Isolation camp at Ascot Vale until 12 January, 1917 then returned to Seymour camp.  Was allotted to the 10th Reinforcements to the 15th Machine Gun Company.  His rank was Private with the regimental number 607.
The Reinforcements embarked from Melbourne (3rd Military District) on 14 February, 1917 on board the Royal Mail Ship Osterley under Master of the Ship Captain W.J. Jenks with Lt-Colonel F.B. Heritage Officer Commanding the troops.  Arrived at the Outer Harbour in Adelaide, South Australia two days later and left the same day.  Fremantle, Western Australia was next on February 20 leaving Australian waters the following day.  Durban, South Africa was reached on March 6 and left a day later.  On to Cape Town docking on March 10 for an overnight stay then on to Sierra Leone to refuel for two days stay.  Departed on 27 March and after weeks at sea their voyage terminated at Plymouth, England on 11 April, 1917 and troops were detrained to Tidworth and Amesbury and the machine gun company marched into their training depot at Grantham the next day for further training for the front.

The Reinforcements proceeded to France from Folkstone on 15 June, 1917 arriving at the Machine Gun Base Depot at Camiers a day later.

His mother wrote to Base Records on 28 June, 1917 that her son Matthew S. Venn went to Seymour, Victoria from Claremont camp in December, 1916 and had not heard anything from him for some time.  Before he left, he was in the Machine Gun sections but did not know his number.  His two brothers could not find anything of him in England.  
Would they kindly let her know if he was dead or alive and his number and what address to put on his letters as she was most anxious to write him or know something about him.  His brothers were asking more about him.  Trusting to hear from you, I am Sir, truly yours Mrs S.M. Venn.
Base Records replied on 4 July, 1917 informing that no report to any effect had been received respecting her son consequently it was to be assumed he was still serving with that unit.  
They gave his postal address for correspondence and stated that any cabled report on the soldier would be promptly transmitted to next-of-kin, shown as resident at the address from which you write. 

Military discipline was issued for the following:

Crime:

Camiers 30/8/17 Absent from Tattoo Roll Call from 30/8/16 until 8.30 p.m.




on 4/9/17 (119hrs)



Award:

28 day’s Field Punishment No.1 by Commanding Officer M.G. Corps, Base





Depot, Camiers 5/9/17



Forfeits:
6 day’s pay under Royal Warrant


Total forfeiture:
34 day’s pay at 5/- equals £8/10

Marched out on 25 September, 1917 to the Machine Gun Company in the field and taken on strength on 3 October, 1917.

Private Venn was killed in action in the field at Wytschaete, Belgium on 15 December, 1917.  He was just twenty-years of age.  Burial took place in Lindenhoek Chalet Military Cemetery.
The 6th Military District was notified on 4 January, 1918 and next-of-kin advised.  

A copy of his service records was prepared for the Pensions Department.
His name appeared in the Casualty List appearing in the:


From 4 March, 1918 his mother Mrs Matilda Venn was issued with a war pension of 14 shillings per fortnight to her at Pipers River.

His mother enquired on 8 April, 1918 about her son’s belongings and a reply was prepared on 16 April that no personal effects had been returned to their office to date, but coming to hand would be promptly forwarded either to next-of-kin as shown as his father, or in accordance with other testamentary instructions.  
It was pointed out that owing to lack of shipping accommodation, considerable delay was caused in the transmission of belongings of deceased members of the A.I.F.  The Kit Bag of a deceased soldier was not returned to next-of-kin, only articles of sentimental value were extracted for return.  

The following was placed by his aunt of Perth, Western Australia in the:


His grieving family also placed the following In Memoriam on the first anniversary of his death in the: 

Base Records wrote to his father on 22 June, 1920 advising that his son was buried in Lindenhoek Chalet British Military Cemetery situated 5¾ miles south west of Ypres, Belgium. 
The Circular and booklet re Graves was dispatched on 12 December, 1919 and received by Base Records on 27 October, 1920.
Photographs in triplicate were transmitted to his next-of-kin on 15 November, 1920.

For his supreme sacrifice the British War Medal (58915) and the Victory Medal (57876) were issued to Private 607 Matthew Sylias Venn, 15th Machine Gun Company in serving his country.

The War Medal was issued to the Commandant 6th Military District on 17 June, 1921.

The Memorial Scroll (339850) was sent on 2 July, 1921 and signed for by his father on July 23.
His father was issued directly with the Memorial Plaque (339850) on 19 October, 1922.

The Victory Medal left by registered post on 25 May, 1923 to Mr Mat. Venn.

The Cemetery Register of Lindenhoek, Belgium order form was dispatched on 15 September, 1926.

His name is commemorated at the Australian War Memorial, Canberra, ACT in the commemorative area on panel 179.

His grave can be located in plot 11 of Lindenhoeck Chalet British Military Cemetery, Bailleul, Belgium within row I in grave no. 3.


PRIVATE MARK REUBEN VENN

8077 – 12th Battalion / 1st Division Training
Mark Reuben Venn was born on 14 February, 1899 at Parattah, Tasmania the son on Matthew Silas and Matilda (nee Harding) Venn.  He had no military experience having evaded service being at Mt Direction.  He was discharged medically unfit from Permanent Guard for being AWL for 3 days and previously rejected for overseas service due to varicose veins.

At the recruiting depot at Claremont camp (6th Military District) on 5 December, 1917 the single eighteen-year-old labourer applied to enlist for active service abroad and passed the medical examination.  The War Precaution Act C41 was complied with.  Being under 21 years of age both parents signed the A.I.F. Form giving permission for their son to enlist.  Attestation forms describe him as 177cms (5ft 10½ins) tall, weighing 68.6kgs (151lbs) with a chest expansion of 89-95cms (35-37½ins) and a medium complexion with good sight in his brown eyes and brown hair.  Distinctive mark was an operation scar on the right leg.  Religion was Church of England.  Next-of-kin nominated was his father Matthew Silas Venn of Piper’s River, Tas.  He signed and took the Oath of Allegiance at Claremont on December 13.
Basic training commenced with the 1st Depot Battalion (6th M.D.) from 12 December, 1917 until February 21, 1918 when transferred to Melbourne, Victoria (3rd M.D.) and allotted to the 27th Reinforcements to the 12th Battalion.  In preparation for departure military authorities noted his Will had been lodged with them.  His rank was Private with the regimental number 8077.

The Reinforcements departed Melbourne, Vic on February 28, 1918 on board the HMAT A71 Nestor and crossed the Pacific Ocean arriving at Colon, Panama on March 25, 1918.  On March 28 the transport departed Panama and tied up at Newport News, U.S.A. on April 3 remaining there for three days and leaving port on April 6, 1918.  Halifax, Nova Scotia was the next port-of-call on April 9 for a day at the wharf to refuel for the voyage to England.  The voyage terminated after fifty-one days at sea at Liverpool, England on April 19 and docked where the disembarking the Reinforcements entrained to Tidworth the next day.  They marched into the 1st Division Training Battalion at Sutton Veny the following day for further training for the front. 

Discipline was issued for the following:



Offence:
Sutton Veny 17/7/18 AWL from midnight 16/7/17 until reporting back





8.30a.m. 18/7/18



Award:

96 hours detention by Major D.R. Brown


Total forfeiture:
6 day’s pay

Went sick on 23 July, 1918 to the Group Clearing Hospital, Sutton Veny and returned on 2/8/18



Offence:
Hytesbury 4/8/18 neglecting to obey A.I.F. Order No. 719 Out of 





Bounds 



Award:

4 days Field Punishment No. 2 by Major D.R. Brown 6/8/18

He was at Sutton Veny when Peace was declared.  On 22 November, 1918 proceeded overseas to France from Southampton arriving at the Aust Infantry Base Depot at Havre and marched out to his unit on November 28 and taken on strength on December 2.  Was transferred on 19 January, 1919 to the Aust Army Service Corps and taken on strength and appointed Driver under A.I.F. Orders 785.

Went sick to hospital on 17 March, 1919 and re-joined his unit on March 23.  On 1 April was detached to the 1st M.G. Battalion re-joining from detachment on April 20.

Orders were received on 7 May, 1919 to return to the No. 1 Company A.S.C. reverting in rank to Private and left there on 17 May crossing to England and marching in to the No. 1 Group camp at Sutton Veny a day later.  On 16 June left for the Reserve Brigade Aust Artillery camp at Heytesbury then to Parkhouse Training Depot.

He was to return on the transport Persic but did not embark.

In trouble again for the following:

Offence:
AWL from 1660hrs 12/7/19 till 2400hrs 14/7/19



Award:

forfeits 2 day’s pay by Major I. Rogers


Total forfeiture:
5 day’s pay

Marched in from A.I.F. Depots in U.K. on 4 October, 1919.

His Will was returned to the 6th Military District on 10 December, 1919.

After demobilisation Private Venn embarked for Australia on 22 November, 1919 on board H.T. Aeneas.  Base Records advised his father on 1 December that his son was returning home.  

The troopship docked in Melbourne (3rd M.D.) on 7 January, 1920 with news of their arrival published in the:


The Tasmanians returned on the Grace Darling steamer to Burnie arriving on January 14 with news of their arrival reported in the:
Military Discharge was issued in Hobart (6th M.D.) on 14 February, 1920 on termination of his period of enlistment.

The 6th Military District at Anglesea Barracks, Hobart forwarded on 25 February, 1920 medical and other documents to Base Records advising that the soldier returned on 7 January, 1920 and discharged on February 14 after demobilisation.

For serving his country Private 8077 Mark Reuben Venn, 1st Division Training was issued with the British War Medal (8396).  As he entered France after hostilities ceased was ineligible for the Victory Medal.
His medal was not collected at the designated barracks and returned to Base Records on 29 March, 1924 and a letter sent to him care of the last known address of next-of-kin.  He applied from Bridgenorth, West Tamar and it was sent by registered post (8070) on 19 June, 1924.

His marriage took place in Launceston at St Paul’s Church on 16 May, 1925 to Clair Edith Carol Nicholas.  He worked as a labourer at Piper’s River from 1922 to 1928 and was with the Soldier Settler’s Scheme.  
He relinquished his lease of 210 acres at Bridgnorth which was advertised in the:


He competed in various wood chopping competitions as follows:


In 1931 the couple were listed in Electoral Rolls at Retreat with his occupation as a labourer.  By 1936 he was at Piper’s River as a farmer. 
A request to Base Records from the Hobart Branch of the Repatriation Commission for a copy of his service records which were forwarded on 5 January, 1938.

During World War II he re-enlisted with the Australian Army on 23 July, 1941 from Piper’s River at Hobart giving next-of-kin as Clare Venn.  T30970 Private Venn was discharged on 16 May, 1942 from the 30th Garrison Battalion.
In 1949 the couple were listed at Area 3 Camp Pell working as a labourer and by 1954 their address was 53a Area 3 Camp Pell with the same occupation.  In 1963 they had moved to Victoria with his occupation of storeman and residence was 36 Harrow Street, Preston.

Mark Reuben Venn passed away on 19 September, 1968 aged 69 years.  Cremation took place in Fawkner Memorial Park and his ashes were collected.
Mrs Clare Venn died in 1987.

His service is commemorated in the Victorian Garden of Remembrance at Springvale Cemetery on Wall 92, Row D.  It reads:
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Daily Post (Hobart) Wednesday November 3, 1915:


LAUNCESTON RECRUITING


At the bi-weekly medical examination of recruits for the Expeditionary Force, held at Launceston yesterday, nine candidates present themselves, seven passed the test, their names being: G.J. Venn	Article abridged





Police Gazette Tasmania December 24, 1915:


On the 30th November, 1915


Private George James Venn, aged 20 years, height 5feet 7½ins, fair complexion, fair hair, Khaki service clothes, next-of-kin Matthew Silas Venn, Mt Direction, Tas.			Later crossed with Arrested 1915/303





Daily Telegraph (Launceston) Thursday December 30, 1915:


AUSTRALIAN FORCES – MILITARY OFFENCES – ACCUSED CONVICTED


At the City Police Court yesterday (before the Police Magistrate) George James Venn was charged with having on December 19, absconded from the Australian Imperial Forces, he being then engaged to serve therein.  Defendant was remanded to Claremont camp and handed over to the custody of Sergeant Conolan, of the military police.





Zeehan and Dundas Herald Wednesday September 5, 1917:


TASMANIAN CASUALTIES – ILL


Private G.J. Venn, Lower Piper—seriously						Article abridged





Herald (Melbourne) Friday August 29, 1919:


THOUSAND LAND TODAY – TROOPS DISEMBARK HAPPILY


In the brilliant weather today approximately 1000 soldiers disembarked at Port Melbourne and were driven through the city in motor cars to the exhilarating accompaniments of cooees, cheers, gifts of wattle blossom, waving of flags and hearty greetings from the strong-posts on the route from the Port to the depot in Sturt-street, South Melbourne.


Approximately 300 men were landed from the Burma at mid-day and 700 from the Persic at two o’clock.





Examiner (Launceston) Friday July 17, 1925:


FAILURE TO PAY


When George James Venn and Robert Armstrong were ordered to pay 45s 6d at the City Police Court last week for having wilfully damaged fencing posts belonging to James Chung Gon, they asked for time in which to pay and were given until yesterday.  Detective-Sergeant Brown informed the Police Magistrate (Mr E. L. Hall) yesterday morning that Venn had called at the detective office and had produced a receipt for the payment of 22s 9d.  He had explained that he would not be able to appear at court, as he had to leave the city to work.  Nothing had been seen of Armstrong.  Detective Brown and Mr Hall— “I suppose a warrant should be taken out against him.”  The case may stand over until Monday.








Advocate (Burnie) Saturday July 7, 1945:


FINES £50 FOR MAKING FALSE STATEMENT TO SECURE PENSION


LAUNCESTON, Friday: George James Venn (54) of 17 Bedford-street, Launceston was fined £50 in the Police Court to-day for making a false statement to obtain an invalid pension.  Convictions were recorded in three similar charges against his wife, Frances Venn.


Venn pleaded guilty to three charges that he imposed upon the Commonwealth by making an untrue representation with a view to obtaining an invalid pension, in that he had represented that he had earned nothing during the periods from February 4, 1941, when he had been continuously employed by Patons and Baldwins on wages since June, 1940.


Mr V.C. Hall, who prosecuted and Venn had received in all about £215 and his wife about £250.


Mr G. Crawford, for defendant, said Venn was a returned soldier of the 1914-18 war, and about 10 or 12 years ago he applied for the invalid pension because of a nervous disorder.  He first received the pension 10 years ago.   His wife had been in ill-health for about 25 years.  When he first made the misstatement, he thought he was right in doing so because in 1940 the Government had made announcements asking pensioners to work if they could do so.  He had gone to work, and thought he could retain the pension.


Mr Crawford said Venn’s wife was also involved and Venn would plead guilty to three similar charges on her behalf.


Mr R.K. Green, P.M. said the Venns had had about £470 from the Commonwealth.  The charges appeared so serious that he did not know whether he could avoid sending Venn to prison.


Mr Crawford said defendant had only about £20.


Mr Green said he felt it was a case of deliberate fraud.  He imposed a find of £50 on the first charge against Venn with £3/3/ counsel’s fee, and 6/6 costs, and ordered restitution of the money, giving him four months in which to pay.  Convictions were recorded against Mrs Venn, and restitution ordered.





His plaque in Carr Villa Memorial Park, Launceston, Tas


Photo sourced from Find-a-Grave submitted by Heath Penney





George Town Municipality Roll of Honour, Tas


Photo sourced from Virtual Anzacs Memorial





Yolla Memorial Hall Roll of Honour, Tas


Photo sourced from Places of Pride contributed by Arthur Garland





Zeehan and Dundas Herald Friday May 26, 1911:


LINDA DROWING FATALITY – HEROISM REWARDED – ROYAL HUMANE SOCIETY’S MEDAL


AWARDED JOHN H. VENN


Sunday, February 27, 1910, was a sad day in the Lyell district.  Two young lives were lost on that day, when John William Harding, aged 18, and Henry Lodge, aged 17, were drowned in a water-hole near the King River.  But these two lives were not cast away without a great and heroic struggle on the part of John Henry Venn, a boy of 16 years of age, to save them.


At the inquest on the victims, the story of the loss of the lives of Harding and Lodge was told by Venn.  


He said—I am “nipper” in the employ of the Mount Lyell M. and R. Company.  I am aged 16 years and reside at Linda with my parents.  On Sunday afternoon I went with Harry Craig, Arthur Corlett, Dan Corkery, Oscar Corlett, Henry Lodge and Jack Harding for a swim in the waterhole adjoining the King River, which is about 20 or 30 yds across and about 16 ft deep.  The banks are almost perpendicular and about 5ft above the water.  We all went for a swim, with the exception of Arthur Corlett.  Harding could swim but Lodge could not.  Harding and Harry Craig were in the water; Lodge was on the end of a log.  From there he returned to the bank, and remarked “Who is that swimming there?”  I said “Jack Harding.”  He said “Here goes.” And with that he jumped into the water.  When he came up, he got on Harding’s back.  Harding attempted to swim and sank.  I dived in and got Lodge and Harding up.  I then pulled off Harding.  As Harding tried to swim away Lodge caught Harding by the legs and we all sank together.  I came to the surface alone.  When I got my wind, I dived down and caught hold of Harding round the waist.  Lodge still had hold of Harding’s legs, and I brough them both to the surface again. I then made Lodge loosen his hold of Harding.  Harding then made a weak attempt to swim, but his face was under the water.  Arthur Corlett here came to our assistance. Lodge immediately seized Corlett by the shoulder, and pushed him under the water.  Corlett here got the cramp and swam ashore.  I was still struggling with Lodge.  The Dan Corkery came to our assistance.  Lodge caught him round the neck with one arm.  With the help of Corkery I made Lodge release his hold.  As I stood off for wind I missed Harding, and noticed Lodge and Corkery sink two or three times.  The last time they sank I dived again and brought them both to the surface and loosened Lodge’s hold of Corkery.  I helped Corkery to the shore, and feeling exhausted I crawled on to the bank and lay there unable to rise.  While there I noticed Lodge come to the surface with his hands up and his mouth open.  He immediately sank. 


Cont’d





Continues:


When I got better, I staggered round the other side and dived in to try and find Harding.  I found him, but I was too weak to bring him to the surface.


The brave action of Venn appealed to Mr A.J. Taylor, of Hobart who is the representative of the Royal Humane Society of Australasia.  Some time ago Mr Taylor brought under the notice of the board the brave conduct of young Venn, and Mr Taylor has just received an intimation that the society’s bronze medal has been awarded to the boy hero of Lyell.





North Western Advocate and the Emu Bay Times Tuesday July 18, 1911:


ROYAL HUMANE SOCIETY AWARDS – HONORING THE BRAVE


MELBOURNE, Monday – Several Royal Humane Society presentations were made in the Town Hall to-day, the State Governor presiding.


John Henry Venn, aged 17, of Linda Valley, Tasmania, was presented with a bronze medal for rescuing three men from drowning in the King River.							Article abridged





Examiner Saturday July 10, 1915:


IN TASMANIA – ENLISTMENT AT LAUNCESTON


The percentage of rejects is under the new enlistment regulations, naturally much reduced, and only five of the 21 volunteers at Launceston yesterday failed to pass the doctor.  Those accepted for service were: J.H. Venn


											Article abridged





Pte John Henry Venn


Photo sourced from Ancestry submitted by Matthew Venn





Examiner (Launceston) Saturday July 6, 1918:


ROLL OF HONOUR – TASMANIAN CASUALTIES


On Saturday Mr and Mrs Venn, Pipers River, received the sad news that their eldest son, Corporal Venn, had been killed in action.  This is the second son to make the supreme sacrifice this year.





Examiner (Launceston) Friday September 20, 1918:


PIPERS RIVER


A memorial service was held in St Alban’s Church of Sunday in memory of John Venn, who was killed in action some time ago.  Great Sympathy is felt for Mr and Mrs Venn, this being the second son to fall this year.





Mercury Friday June 13, 1919:


IN MEMORIAM – ON ACTIVE SERVICE


VENN—In loving memory of my dear husband and my dear Daddy, Corporal John Henry Venn, killed in action, somewhere in France on June 13, 1918.


	Gathered to the outer west,


	His gun down splendid and serene, to rest.


Inserted by his loving wife and little daughter, Hilda and Glory Venn.





Copy of his details in the cemetery register - Taken from Soldier’s WWI Documents





His headstone in Villers Bretonneux Military Cemetery, France


Photo sourced from Find-a-Grave submitted by Digger





Photo of Villers Bretonneux Military Cemetery, France


by kind permission of


The War Graves Photographic Project 


www.twgpp.org 





Matthew Sylas Venn was born at Parattah, Oatlands, Tasmania on 9 August, 1897 the son of Matthew Silas and Matilda (nee Harding) Venn.  





He had no military experience as their area was exempt and was educated at Linda Valley State School.





Matthew Sylas Venn


Photo sourced from Find-a-Grave website submitted by Just Jack 





Pte Matthew S. Venn


Photo sourced from Ancestry


Submitted by Donna J. Walters Venn


22/12/2021





Daily Telegraph (Launceston) Friday October 20, 1916:


ENTERED CLAREMONT


HOBART, Thursday—The following 50 men entered Claremont camp today:


M.S. Venn, Latrobe									Article abridged





North Western Advocate and the Emu Bay Times Tuesday January 22, 1918:


AUSTRALIAN CASUALTIES – 380TH LIST RELEASED – THE TASMANIANS


Last night the Defence Department released the 380th Australian Casualty List, from which the following Tasmanian names are extracted:


KILLED IN ACTION (21)


Pte M.S. Venn, Lower Piper – 15/12/17							


Article abridged





West Australian (Perth) Thursday July 11, 1918 and Western Mail (Perth) Friday July 19. 1918: 


KILLED IN ACTION


VENN—A loving tribute to the memory of Matthew S. Venn, killed in action, December 17, 1917, aged 20 years.  Also John H. Venn, killed in action June 13, 1918, aged 25 years; brother of George and Mark (also on active service in France), all of Lower Ringwood, Tasmania.


—Inserted by their aunt, Mrs J.C. Taylor, Araluen, Park-road, Mount Lawley.








Examiner (Launceston) Saturday December 14, 1918:


IN MEMORIAM – ON ACTIVE SERVICE


VENN—In fond and loving memory of our dear son and our dear brother, Gunner M.S. Ven, killed in action somewhere in France, on December 15, 1917; brother of Corporal J.H. Venn, killed in action June, 13, 1918 and brother of George and Mark, still abroad.


	We mourn for you in silence boys,


	When others are asleep,


	We know you are with Jesus now;


	Rest, sweetly sleep.


—Inserted by their father, mother, sisters and brothers, Piper’s River. 





His headstone in


Lindenhoek Chalet British Military Cemetery, Bailleul, Belgium


Photo sourced from


Tasmanian War Casualties website.





The Herald (Melbourne) Friday January 9, 1920:


TROOPS LAND FROM AENEAS


Bringing 46 officers, a nurse, 353 other ranks for disembarkation in Victoria and six officers and 44 other ranks for Tasmania, the transport Aeneas berthed at No 8A Victoria Dock at 10.45 this morning.


The Victorian quota proceeded at once to the Sturt-street depot in motor cars, and were all dealt with by 12.30 p.m.


The Tasmanians will be quartered at the Domain camp till shipping is available to take them across the Strait.





Daily Telegraph (Launceston) Thursday January 15, 1920:


RETURNING SOLDIERS – ARRIVALS EX GRACE DARLING – FIFTY-NINE RETURNING


By the steamer Grace Darling, which arrived at Burnie yesterday from Melbourne, came a party of 59 returned soldier’s homeward bound to their various homes in the State.  The boat was however, not on time to allow the men to catch the Coast train and accordingly they will not arrive here until today’s train.  The complete list of those who disembarked is as follows;


Pri. M.R. Venn, 1st D. Train								


Article abridged





Examiner (Launceston) Wednesday September 24, 1924:


GOVERNMENT ADVERTISEMENTS – LANDS, SURVEYS AND CLOSER SETTLEMENT DEPARTMENT


				Davey Street, Hobart


TENDERS are invited on and up to the 30th September for the purchase or lease of the undermentioned properties:


	Bridgenorth—210acres, formerly leased to M.R. Venn


Successful tenderer to pay half year’s rental in advance and will be liable for rates and taxes except land tax.


Envelope to be marked “Tender for [name lot]”


								J.L. McGOUGH


								Secretary of Closer Settlement.





Daily Telegraph (Launceston) Friday December 30, 1927:


PIPER’S RIVER SPORTS – HANDICAPS FOR MONDAY


The following are the chopping handicaps for the Piper’s River sports, to be held on Monday.


M.R. Venn 10-inch 15sec; 12-inch 23secs						Article abridged





North-East Advertiser (Scottsdale) Tuesday March 25, 1930:


LILYDALE SHOW SPORTS – KEEN COMPETITION IN CHOPPING EVENTS


9-INCH HANDICAP CHOP: First £5, Second £2. Third £1.


Fourth Hear: Other starters M.R. Venn 15.  Time 23 secs.					Article abridged





North-Eastern Advertiser (Scottsdale) Tuesday March 24, 1931:


SPORTING EVENTS


9-INCH CHOP HANDICAP: First £5, Second £2. Third £1


First Heat: N. Bennett, 21 secs 1; M. Venn 28 secs 2.


12-INCH CHOP HANDICAP First £15, Second £4. Third £1


Third Heat: Other starters: M.R. Venn 27.						Article abridged





A.I.F. 


8077


Private M.R. Venn


1st Division Training


19 September, 1968 aged 69 years








